’r

0 ——
A —— “w

l'-llll-lll-
hcd S —— N
- —
—— |
e ——— |\
J ——
’T
- ———— . (LU
ot 4 1. 0)]
—— |
Mx\d S —— [\ (O
e ——
— L [
e (L
—_——— m

e —
e —— m_”.

—_—
||
e |
—=4JO

Clarks

C & J Clark Limited Annual Report & Accounts for the year ended 3 1st january 1999



Chairman’s Statement

Board of Directors

Summary of trading resuits

Chief Executive’s Report

Financial Review

Directors” Report

Remuneration Report

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
Report of the auditors

Corporate Governonce

Group profit and loss account

Balance sheets

Group cash flow stctement

Group stafement of tofal recognised gains ond losses
Movemenis in group shareholders’ funds
Group note of historical cost profits and losses
Accounting policies

Notes 1o the accounts

C & ) Clark timited and subsidicries
Group financial record

Facts at your fingertips




Results at a glance

1999 1909
Turnover £792.2m £/743. 1Tm
Operating profit* £42.5m £39.4m
Earnings per Ordinary Share™ 31.4p 28.3p
Dividends per Ordinary Share — interim 3.9p -

| — final 4.7p 4.7p0
Net borrowings £52.5m £35.0m

* Before exceptiona! items

Earnings per share {pence} Return on capital employed {%}

Dividends per share {pence}
Before exceptiona! fiems Before exceptional items

245 269 237 283 314 11.2 11.¢ 133 151 159 70 70 47 890

The inferim dividend was waived in 1998
due to the company costs incurred on
demergsr.




Chairman’s Statement

The mercuricl events of 1998 have had an
impact on our business, as is evident from
some of the results and the incidence of
exceptional costs, but the company has
conlinued to prosper and ot the operating
level has produced record profits of
£42.5m and a very satisfactory retum

on capital employed of 15.9%. Also the
quality of eamings has continued to
improve with progressively less refiance
on nonfootwear items such as property
disposal profits and pension surpluses.
Pure feotwear operating profits now
account for about 80% of our earnings,

a praoportion that will continue to rise.

The main driver in 1998 was our UK
business which produced a second year
of substantial progress in sales ard
profitability. Sales from UK operations
increased by 4.4% o £515.8m and
operating profit by 25% from £26.8m
to £33.5m. This result was achieved in
a difficult year for footweer and retail in
general, influenced as it was by a very wet
summer, confinuous ialk of economic
recession and weak retail sales in the latter
part of the vear. To have achieved a retail
comparative shop increcse for the Clarks /K
brands of 11.2% for the year compared 1o
the British Relail Consortium average of
-2.3% and record market shares in adult
and children’s shoes in the UK of 7.8%
men’s, 2.6% women'’s and 17.9% in
children’s is no mean feat. It is the reward
for the dedication to produci, value
and presentation the UK team has
demonstrated over the past few years
and the restructuring of the supply chain
we have undertaken io improve the
preductivity and efficiency of our operation,

By contrast, Clarks Companies of North
America [CCNA) had by their recent
standards o somewhat lacklustre year
reflecting the rather depressed state of US
refailing. In the event, aithough scles of
$275m were 6.3% over the previous yeaor,
profits fell back from $18.0m to $15.2m.
However, forward orders for
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Spring/Summer are well ahead and
CCNA's management are confident of
regaining their momentum.

It is pleasing to report that against the
background of wrmoil in international trade,
particularly in the Far East, the most
significant point of growth was our
internationat branded wholesaling business.
Sales increased by 12% even though
the strong pound and the Asian crisis
decimated some markets, notably Koreq,
Hong Kong and Singapere. Cther markets
bucked the tfrend; Jopan continued its recent
strong growth increasing sales by 73% 1o
450,000 pairs in spite of the well
publicised economic problems, whilst
Europe also recorded strong pairage
growth and cruciclly succeedad in
establishing a women’s business for the
first time.

Unfortunately Clarks Australia and Ravel
did not share in the generally good results
and recorded further losses. As beth
businesses have persistently suffered from
disproportionately high overhead costs and
have found it increasingly difficult to
compete in their respective markets,
management has decided to fundomentally
restructure them. The Ravel chain, whilst
retaining its trading identity will be
integrated within the Clarks/K retail
organisation and its central functions moved
to Streat, Clarks Australia, a vertically
integraied component maker, shoe
manufacturer, branded wholesaler and
retailer [very much the profile of Clarks in
the UK in the mid 80's) will progressivaly
be concentrated on its branded wholesale
core. New management has been put in
ploce, Footrest Retail has been sold and the
shoe manufccturing plant at Marleston will
close in August 1999. Such action gives
rise to considerable expense and £12m
or 50 has been provided for in respect of
Ausiralia by way of exceptional cost in
these accounts.

Although in previous stalements | have
expressed the hope thot we would see an

end to the closure of UK manufacturing
capacity, that has not proved to be the
case. Events have conspired fo render
some of our UK factories uncompetitive, the
continued relatively high value of the pound
makes foreign goods cheaper in the UK
markets and UK goods more expensive
overseas and forced devaluations by Far
Eastern countries and Brazil exacerbate the
problem. We must remain competitive in all
aspects including price, quality and design
in world markets so we have no choice

but to seek out the best sources worldwids;
it is this competitive drive which has led to
the restoration of the profitability of the
company in the pasi few vears.

Regretfully we have decided to close our
factories in Bath, Exmouth and Shap.

Of course these decisions are never taken
lightly and are taken with due regard to
those people on whom they bear, we dlso
appreciate the hard work and flexibility of
our workforce in irying to keep their planis
competilive. We do our best to ensure
that departing colleagues are firancially
faidy provided for and assisted into new
employment. The closure of factories and
reloted facilities gives rise again to
substantial exceptional costs and these
have likewise been provided for in these
accounis. It is the Board's intenticn that
the remaining faciories will be given the
best chance possible to survive agains
fermidable competition and to that end
significant capital investment will be
undertaken to make cur own manufacturing
as productive ard efficient as possible.
There are no guarantees that can be given
about the future and it will take hard work,
initictive and adoptability to succeed.

The use of capital has been welt
controlled through the year. Cperating
capifal at year end was £22.4m (7.9%)
above the previous ysar mainly due 1o
copital expenditure and higher receivables,
Stock levels were actually slightly lower
than last year on higher sales. Net
bormowings increased over the year to end




at £52.5m infloted by increased financial
support to Australio, exceptional cash
outflows and & higher working capital and
capital expenditure requirement. Gearing
rose to 24% of shareholders' funds but
balance sheet ratios remain very strong and
well able to support the plarned growth in
footwear trading.

The impact of the exceptional costs is
such to turn the operating profit into a loss
for the company on a profit after tax basis.
Mowever, the elimination of loss making
and uneconomic activities will grovide g
strong stimulus to future profit, hence the
Board has decided that it is appropricte to
pay a final dividend of £.7p per share
giving a totai for the year of 8.6p.

Your Board has considered what advice
it can give shareholders on the issue of
flotation of the company. Such advice s feit
to be necessary at this junciure because it
is the fifth full year since undertakings on
the subject were made io shareholders at
the time of the defeat of the Berisford bid,
The Board proposes that when it judges the
company could be flocted ot @ premium
ard sustaincble shore price, a position it
may well reach in the Autumn of 2000,
but it may be ecrlier or even later, that @
secret ballot be held of all shareholders to
establish the real balence of opinion on
the matter. Only then can the Board and
shareholders know whether or not they
should advance this issue, which would
incur cost. The Family Sharshoider Council
supports the Board's proposal.

The Board Is pleased o welcome
Harriet Hall and Ben lovell as family
nominated nonexecutive directors in place
of Lance Clark and Caroline Gould, who
refire after ten and nine vears respeciively
on the Board. lance and Caroline have
both made major cortributions fo the
company through what hos been an era of
major, and often turbulent, change and
have been steadfost in seeing those
changes through. | and the Bocrd are
grateful to them for their support and
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advice. We are also plecsed to walcome
Norman Finn as a non-exacutive director.
Norman is Chairman and Chief Executive
of AmAsia International Lid and is vastly
experienced in infernational sourcing and
branded footwear. He will undoubtedly
bring a new dimension to the Board's
discussions. On the point of refirements,
Neville Gillibrand, Head of International,
will be retiring in April after over 30 years
of distinguished service. It is fargely Neville
we have to thank for our vigorous men's
and infemational business and we wish
him a long and happy retirement.

The Family Shareholder Council has
requested, and the Board is happy 1o
comply, that the Employee Shere Scheme
be run for the next five years without
rastriction, and propose to mcke 1.5 million
new shares available to support the
scheme. | am sure such o positive initiative
will be warmly welcomed by all employees.
Formal approval will be scught from all
shareholders of the AGM.

As was the case last year, the final
payment of the Profit Related Pay Schems
will not be triggered because of a
technicality but similory because of the very
satisfactory operafing profit performanee of
the company, the Board has determined
that again o special bonus of 1.33% of
pay will be paid to all UK emgloyees.
Once again this is not a precedent for
future payments but a thank you for a
jiob well done.

The new year has started well with UK
refail sales up both on last vear and
irternal plan. Similarly, forward orders for
our infernaticnal wholesale businesses are
alse well up. We are hopeful of another
goed year but doubts about the global
economy remain and if the US foliers it
could be o different story. Your company is
increasingly well positioned for long term
international growth,

Roger Pedder Chairman




Board of Directors

Reger Pedder aged 57, was appointed
a nonexeculive director in 1988 and
became Chairman in Oclober 1993,
executive Chairman in Jenuary 1995 and

nomexecutive Chairman on st April 1996,

Tim Parker aged 43, joined the Board
os Chief Execulive on 5th January 1996,
He was formerly Chief Executive of
Kenwood Appiiances ple.

Peter Bolliger aged 54, worked in the
shoe business from 1968-20 before joining
Harrods as Managing Director for the
peried 1990-94. He joined the company
in 1994 and was appointed UK
Operaticns Director and to the Board

on 23rd February 1996,

Mark McMenemy cged 40, joined the
Board as Finance Director on 12th August
1996, from Marks & Spencer ple.

He previously fuffilled senior roles in the
UK and in the USA, where he was the
Chief Financial Officer of Brooks Brathers,
Inc. from 1990092,

Lance Clark aged 43, served as an
executive director from 1974, until 1988
when he became a non-executive director
following 28 years” service with the group.

Michael Garner aged 61, is also
Chairman of Total Office Group ple and is
a non-execuiive direcior of a number of
other compenies including Albright &
Wilsen ple, Enterprise Inns ple and Ibstock
plc. He was formedy Group Financial
Director of T.I. Group plc and was a
member of the Accounting Standards Board

- from 199095,

Caroline Gould aged 50, was appointed
a nonexecutive director in 1990. She is
a parstner in an archifects practice in
Somerset.

e

Norman Finn cged 60, was appointed

to the Board as o nonexecutive direcior on
8th Junuary 1699, He worked at US Shoe
Corporction from 1971 to 1987 Since
1987 he hos been Chairman and Chief
Executive of AmAsia International Limited
which makes and imports branded and
private labe! footwear for sale in the
United States.

Harriet Hall and Benjamin Lovell, who have
been nominafed by the Family Sharehclder
Council, will become directors following the
resignations of tance Clark and Caroling
Gould at the conclusion of the Annual
General Meesting.

Harriet Hall cged 50, was Chairman of
the Family Sharehalder Council from 1993
o 1998, She is a sclicitor and works for
the Notional Consumer Council.

Benjamin Lovell aged 48, owns and
aperates two independent shoe stores in
Philadelphia. Prior o sefting up his own
business, he worked in various parts of
Clarks for 17 years.

From left: Peter Bolliger, Benjamin Lovell, Mark McMenemy, Caroline Gould, lance Clark, Roger Pedder, Norman Finn, Tim Parker,

Michael Garner, Judith Derbyshire (Compary Secretary), Harriet Hall,
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Summary of trading results

for the year ended 31st January 1999

proPr bty o okt
. . exceptional exceptional Cnl:pi:ﬁ C?pitol
o9 1508 1999 1658 P gee s
£m £m £m &m £m £m
UK operations 515.8 494 2 335 26.8 176.2 177.2
Owverseas operations
America 167.5 157.6 9.2 1.0 75.9 68.1
Australia 28.9 31.4 (2.2 {0.8) 8.9 17.0
Rest of the world 74.1 531 3.5 3.2 15.8 12.8
270.5 2421 10.5 13.4 100.6 Q79
Group items - - (1.1} (2.4 (10.1) 7.1
Discantinued activities 59 6.8 [0.4) 1.6 {0.2) 3.1
7922 743.1 42.5 39.4 266.5 261.1

Group furnover Group operating capital Operating profit (£m}
by geographic area (%) by geographic area (%) Before exceptional items

4.4 57 32 33.5 9.2 3.5 (2.2)

94
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During 1998 we focused investment behind
the key markefing initiatives that we started
in 1997. We conlinued to sirongly support
the ongoing programme to reposition the
Clarks brand via:

* A burst of Spring adults TV adverfising,
using the successful “Act Your Shoe Size
Not Your Age” crealive concept.

* A major Auturnn adults poster compaign,
showcasing our new ranges.

* The roll out of our new Clarks retail design
across 43 stores.

* A calendar of high impact window schemes.

We have supported our Clarks children’s
business with a £2m Relationship Marketing
Programme, spearheaded by the Toddler
Team and Young Explorer schemes. We have
also invested in building and prometing our
other children’s brands with a TV advertised
CICA promotion ot Easter, a CICA Lights
instore promofion at October haif-term,

and a Boolleg branded watch promotion ot
Back-to-Schoal. The Springer brand has been
supperted by a heavyweight press campaign
in the Spring and by brochure mdilings to
our Springer datobase in both Spring and
Autumn, The K brand has also benefited from
increased investment in Spring and Autumn
press campaigns for both K women’s shoes
and men’s CDX product.
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Above New look K store The updated

K idenlity was piloted in a smart new

K Shop in Manchester City Cenlre in
December 1998. The feel of the shop is
premium but inviting with warm lighting,
soft corpet details and elegant display unils
in conlrasting rich, dark wood and creamy,
soft maple. Early customer research has
been very positive, ond the new look will
be further tested in Maidenhead in 1999,

Below left K Colour sold well this Autumn in
styles like this — our beautiful K meceasin
"Hendry” with glovesoft leather upper and
full leather linings. Backed by an advertising
campoign in daily press and monthly
women’s magazines and also by ¢ strong
window presentation, the shoe was a huge
success and illusirates the future direction

for the K brand.

Left New K shoes branding The
repositioning of K as a premium brand

for the growing 50+ market has been
supported by o major programme 1o update
the K Corporate Identity. The new identity
retains many of the familiar elements of the
exisling lego but is much more finely crafted
and contemporary, and the current twerone
grey has been updated with a rich new
blueberry and stone colour scheme. The
new lock is being infreduced onto alf

K shees, packeging and pointofsale during
1999,




Below Bootleg Cur preeen Beetleg ronge
has been one of the great success stories
of the year. Aimed at 8-11 year old giris
and boys, it offers authentic fashion sthling
whilst delivering all the fitting and quality
benelits assccicted with Clarks shoes.

The balance struck between giving kids
styles they love and parenis oll the
assurance of our brands has grown
Bootleg 1o nearly a million pairs a year.
This is now a brand launched and marketed
in its own right, with dedicated show
material and inrstere presentation.

o7

Above Kids Colour, sofiness, lightness and
exciting new and contemporory styling —
that's the rapidly changing foce of the
Clarks Kids brand. Nothing underlines this
more than the litle moccasin group typified
by "Satchmo and Sasparilka’. This mini
range has done a great deal 1o change
perceptions of staff and customers alike,
and in 1998 the styles together add up

to 150,000 pairs of sales. leather linings,
colourful nubucks and o wonderfully soft
handle are helping drive higher prices

and more cash margin per pair — and
show the value of picking the right source
for the right product.

Left Caulder Moore kids store As part of
the roll-out programme of the successful new
Clarks shop design, we have developed o
completely new look for kids departments.
The new kids design, which combines a
bright, colourhul area for young children
with an cuthentic branded area for Bootleg
and CICA customers, was leunched in the
Merryhill Centre at Easter in a “stand-alene”
kids unit where turnover has now reached
almost £3m.




Above CDX Innovative sporis shoe
technclogy combined with a premium
formal appearance has once again been

a winning combination for K COX men's
shoes, Supported by a siong nalional
advertising campaign and instore display
malerial, this range has been very successful
for our UK and rish wholesale customers as

well as in cur own retdil and franchise stores.

LA
“‘ Mm'“‘?mem :s?a»ﬂw
: ﬁmm@”?% g

e
?eégs*iéi‘g

5
“:@s.szs.hs“;:;?g;gmg
L @%@w? HE
G S
g x;’ b
Tt

P
§".N.>.mm

e

08

Above Springers For the first time Ihis
Winter we have seen the true polentiat

of the Springers brand as a year round
proposition with the excellent scles of these
beautiful bools — up to date shyling with the
added benefit of Springer sofiness, lighiness
and flexibility. We are talking te our loyal
Springers customers fo find out more about
what they want from us. What they tell us
is “YWe could live in them!”

Left CICA is the only spers brand designed
uniquely for kids! Volume in 1998 has
topped 1.25m pairs, with authentic locking
fitted trainers, market leading ‘CICA Lights’,
and now a brand new package of baby
trainers aiming lo get them when they're
young — and keep them. All the attributes

of quality and fit cre here backed by the
specialist knowledge of exaclly what the

2 Io 8 year old wants out of a sports product.




Left Handbags We sell 4 million handbags
mainly through our own relail distribution,
with a value of £7.1m. The product ranges
from £15-£25 for fashion product in lextile
materials under our Ditto brand and from
£22-£70 for leather handkags under our
Clarks (&) brand. We have also introduced
a handbag collection lo coordinate with
Springer footweaor.

Below International Shop Concept An
innovative new shop design system is being
tested in international markets. Designed to
reflect the brand's Iraditions of craftsmanship
and quality, the sysiem uses a combinalion
of redwood, beech and stainless stee! to
creqate a unique atmosphere. The “fult”

shop concept is being tested in Germany,
Spain and Hong Kong and results to date
confitm the design has real potential.

Below ATL boots ATL outdoor performance
foorwear was successfully launched this
year. With fop specifications, exciting sole
details and Goretex linings, these shoes
hove extended the ATL sandal into the
growing “brown lrainer” walking market.
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Chief Executive’s Report

Strategic overview

This has been o year of great endeavour,
tough decisions and solid progress. Taking
these in reverse order, let me comment first
on the solid progress: in a difficult year for
the UK clothing and feotwear industries,

the operating results from our centinving
operations moved chead by a considerable
margin, We have consistently stressed the
central role of UK refail operations to the
group, since our shops account for 52% of
turnover and 38% of the operating capital
employed. Itis, therefore, pleasing to report
strong trading in our shops that have
benefited from steadily improving product
ranges brought about, in part, by the
freedom to buy product from the best
cvailable source, new shop-its and tighter
operating managemeni. The UK wholesale
business performed well, and despite the
strength of the pound our Inleraational
division achieved substantial growth in sales
valve and volume. America slipped back on
last year's huge advance ard the Austratian
subsidiary, although small in terms of the
group, had a very poor year indeed.

1998 hos certainly been a year for
some tough decisions. in 1996, my first
year with the company, we undertock a
maijor sirategic review of our operations,
closing several factories, and cutting back
on HQ overheads. The result was a large
exceptional charge in our accounts, but the
subsequent reduction in our cost base laid
the foundation for the rapid improvement in
the operating performance of the company.
This year's resulls have been ancther great
step forward, and represent the pesitive
outcome of those eariier decisions.
However, our main focus as a management
tleam must be always on the future, and we
have concluded that to meet the developing
competitive challenges to our business
across the world, a further major exercise
of restructuring the business is necessary.
Therefore we cre incurring substontial
excaptional charges this year, amounting
to £35m, and the impact will be felt
throughout our worldwide operations.

Most of these charges rekate to the
closure of plants or the further reductions in
manufacturing employment. The brute fact is
thet it is virtually impossible to carry out
labourintensive shoemaking operations in
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developed countries,except for the very top
end of the market, and fast moving fashion
products. The competitive pressures arising
from much fower labour costs overseas
have become more intense, and this has
been exacerbaled by the sirong pound.
However, other factors are also at work.
The infrastructure supporting overseas
factories has improved, and also the quality
and variety of product available. In order
to satisfy the demands of our customers
for this variety, in terms of look and
consiruction, we have had to look beyond
our own faciories to source products from
the best available sources worldwide.
Were we to ignore all these trends, our
competitors, who have not been slow to
toke advantage of lower cost sources, would
achieve a considerable advantage over us.

To our employees who will lose their
jcbs, an explanation in terms of economics
can offer litle or no comfort. To say that one
is sorry is, of course, a quite inadequate
response 1o the enormity of impact of this
programme on the persondl lives of many
people working in our plants, What we can
do is offer the assurance to our shareholders
and our employees, that decisions
regarding factories across the company are
only iaken ofter the most careful assessment
has been done of future longterm viability,
reflecting not only recent developments, but
medium-erm trends. There is, in our view,
only one thing worse than a decision whick
has an adverse effect on employment,
and that is a.decision which is taken tco
iate. We have, therefore, aftempted to
incorporate in this year's charges all of the
actions which are necessary to mainiain
the business on a competitive footing. To
incur frequent exceptional charges dees
call into question the very nature of their
exceptionality. By embarking on this second
maijor programme this year, it is our goal fo
minimise any further significant exceptiona!
costs in the future.

let me deal with two commen
misconceplions about the exceptional
charges taken as a result of a restructuring
programme. In the first place, although
these charges reduce the profit of the
business in the current year, from the point
of view of cash flow the effect of this
becomes posifive after about 18 months.

Generally the cash flow profile is initially
negative on account of payments relating
to redundancies, and turns positive as cost
savings are redlised. No restructuring
decisions are token unless they achieve a
financial retura in terms of discounted cash
flows, compared with the next bast
cllernative course of action. Secondly, there
is a view that becouse such exceptional
costs reduce shareholders’ funds, the value
of the business must be adversely affected.
However, the open market value of the
company is primarily a funciion of fulure
cash flows and earnings, and to the extent
that these will be enhanced by cost
savings, the effect of the programme
announced should be positive.

The impact of the changes will be felt
in two main arecs of the business: UK
manufecturing and Australia. In the UK, we
have announced closures and cutbacks
which will result in @ tofal of some
1,200 jobs discppearing from cur piants.
The factories in Bath, Exmeuth and Shep
will be closing this year and the cutting
and sfilching acivifies in liminster have
been discontinued. The cornerstitched
production at WestorrsuperMare has been
moved to our plant in Portugal, and the
men's product made in Kendal will ransfer
into other sources later this yeor. Also in
Kendal, a combination of impreved
productivity and the elimination of the
majority of cut and close copacity will result
in a sizeable reduction in the workforce.

It is worth stressing that we have not
given up on manufacturing, and over the
past two years £6.9m has been spent in
our plants on up-grading equipment. We
have new management in place in many
factories, and the development departments
have been strengthened with additienal
staff or further raining. Cur objective is 1o
make our factories stond-olone businesses,
capable of sustaining themselves in the
open marketplace as if there was no
in-house customer. To do this, we recognise
that plonts will need to be far more
pro-active in terms of developing new
constuctional ideas and capable of
delivering o fast, rightfirstime prototyping
service. Truly competitive factories can be a
strength, and no effort will be spared in
achieving this geal. On the other hend




there can be no merit in manufacturing for
manufacturing's sake.

There are two other main elements o
the UK restructuring programme. Although
our Clarks and K chains have made
considerable progress this year, our Ravel
business continues o struggle, and hes
never achieved consisient returns over many
years. We hove now embarked on
fundamentat reorganisation of the business,
replacing most of the managemeant team
and moving the HQ to Street. Our intention
is to maintain the fashion appeal and
separate identity of the Ravel brand, whilst
allowing the chain to benefit from the
considerable management resources
avaifable in Street.

The other area of our UK business
where exceptional costs will be Incurred is
the overhaul of operations in the Bullmead
central warehouse. This will iake the form
of a negoficted set of changes with the
workiorce, to improve our responsiveness
to our shops and wholesale customers.
Already great skrides forward have been
made, but there are several major changes
that will be necessary if the warehouse is
to operaie flexibly and efficiently.

This year our Austrafian operafion has
not performed well for the second year
rurning, and this has prompted a major
strategic review of the business. We have
decided to focus our activities on the
wholesale activifies of the Clarks and Hush
Puppy brands that have a realistic prospect
of eorning the level of refurns we require,
Consequently we have anncunced an
agreement 1o self to the Figgins Group the
Footrest retail business ot o considerable
book loss. Painful though this has been, we
consider it the best route for the business as
a whole, and will allow us to escape further
losses this year. Another key element of the
restructuring in Australia, whick we have just
announced, is the closure of the remaining
shoe faciory in Adelaide. By sourcing
elsewhere in the Pacific Rim, we will be
abie to rectily the serious decline in margins
over the past two years without any
comgromise on quality. There may be some
other smaller changes, but in essence we
should establish a business in Australia that
is smaller, simpler and with considerably
less risk, as well as a good prospect of

11

earning a relurn on the capital employed.

The past 12 months have been
dominated by these important structural
changes, but there has been great
endeavour across the business in
implementing a wide range of initiatives
lo improve our performance. We are
confinuing to make a very heavy investment
in the Avcilability Improvement Programme,
on which this year's revenue spend
increased by 60% fo £2.7m. Adopling a
strategy of using bestofbreed pockages,
we hove already infroduced a new
forecasting programme and the packages
for range assortment planning and supply
chain menagement are on test. In the
logistics areq, we have greatly reduced
replenishment times to our shops and
significontly increased the quantity of
shipments pre-packed ot suppliers and sent
directly to our shops.

The retail team has a substantial
programme of initiolives to improve
operating efficiency and effectiveness.

Of most immediate importance is the rollout
of new EPOS systems with tills which are
faster, more flexible and capable of
delivering far better local management
information, Two other good examples of
work underway are the posilive selling
initiative and staff hours planning and
forecasting. In the first case we have built
on our reputation for service fo ensure that
the customer is positively aided in making
a purchase. In the second example, we are
working to ensure that shops are staffed

at different times of the week to reflect
customer demand. This is not on exercise

in costsaving as such, but is designed
principally to increase levels of service

at busy land usually predictable)

shopping times.

This has been a busy year for the
IT team with the looming crunch day of
Ist January 20C0. Y2K is absorbing an
enormous level of resources both internally
and externally. We have recently made the
important appoiniment of Tim Fleming as IT
Direcior, and he will give fresh impetus to
importent and expensive decisions that will
need o be token regarding the company's
legacy systems of largely bespoke software.
These have a limited lifespan, and of some
point we will need to consider the

alternative agproach, a unified business
datfa warehouse and handling system
commonly known as enterprise resource
planning (ERP).

We now have put in place
comprehensive sirategic plans lo ensure that
we achieve our three goals of being: the
No.? shoe retailer in the UK; the leading
UK children’s shce brand by a factor of at
least two; and the wearld's No.1 shoe
brand outside the sports category. This
work has been driven by the assessment of
those whe are closest to the marketplace
and has indicated some clear priorities,
such os building on our strengths in the key
markets of the US, Germany and Japan.
Ancther objective we have set for
ourselves, and one which we consider to
be important to achieve leadership in
international markets, is to be ranked in the
Top 3 in our chosen product categories in
each of the major markets in which we
operate. Having established a strong
position in the UK markel, more resources
can be concentiated on building our
international Clarks brand with innovative
product ranges, extended distribution and
strong promoticnal support.

None of the progress we have made
this year would have been possible without
the enthusiastic cammitment of our siaff
throughout the company. We have
managed io maintain a flat maragement
shruciure in the business, and this helps
to minimise the distance between
policy-makers, customers and suppliers,
One of the company'’s greatest assets is
the "nononsense”, “cando” approach of
our people, and a willingness to learn from
the best examples outside the company. In
our business, whilst the big ideas have their
place, we believe that success is in the
detail: it is built upon the exploitation of
our strengths but just as importantly, a
painstaking analysis of our weaknesses,
and a desire to go one beiter than our
competitors,

As the Chairman has already noted, this
was a year of record sales and operating
profits before exceptional costs. Turnover
increased from £743.im to £792.2m, a
gain of 6.6%.

Before exceptional costs operating profit
on confinuing operations was 13.5%




above last years result. Afler excepticnal
costs of £33m, and a jox charge of
£9.8m, a net loss for the year of £3.9m
was recorded. Although we are never
happy with red figures, this position dees
not, of course, reflect the sustainable
frading performance of the business.

Underlying this improvement in
operating profit was the strong performance
of the UK retail business. Despile significant
growth in export volumes, the strong pound
depressed profit in the Internationc!
Civision. Qur American companies saw
trading profit fall from £11.0m to £9.2m,
and our Australian subsidiory deepened
losses from £0.8m to £2.2m.

As in previous years, | will comment
briefly on trading in the main areas of the
business:

UK operations

This was a year of further sustained
momentum. Tolal sales moved ahead 4.4%
up from £494.2mm o £515.8m. The major
source of this improvement was the
Clarks/K retail ¢hein which managed 11%
comparative shep growih.

Children’s

This year we put an end to the stagnation
in this business, and achieved a very
worthwhile increase in turnover of 4.4%.
Scles through our own shops were
particularly stong, with the CICA sports
shoes performing well. Fresh designs ard
new sources have helped to extend some
of the gains made last yeor in First and
Infant shoes into the Junior age group.
Beotleg product, with iis totally authentic
looks, has also claimed a higher share of
the market. Good preduct, careful planning
and effective delivery replenishment all
contributed 1o a record Backdo-School. The
CICA wolch promotion warked extremely
well, and we are also making further
progress with the Toddler Team and Young
Explorers direct marketing pregramme.

Women's

It was another strong year, with sales 9%
up on last year and volumes 4% ahead.
We made sizeable inroods into the 25-44
age group, our fargef marketl, but it has
proved difficult to maintain all of our
business in clder age groups at the same
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time. Trade in the first half of the yeor was
dominated by the weather; a poor storf fo
the season, an outstanding forhight in May,
followed by a domp June ard finally the
business being rescued by an early start to
the Sale. In the second half of the year
Springer shoes and boots performed
strongly. Improved market testing helped
to limit our exposure o poorly performing
styles, and considerobly reduced
markdowns in the Sale.

Men’s

The comparative shop increase in our
Men's business was +9%, coming on top
of the previous year’s +22%. Improving
margins of around 1.5 percentage points
underpinred the increase in centribution to
overheads of 7.2%. We made @ start on
the reinvigoration of the Active Air ranges,
modern styles performed well, and the ATL
shoe range mode an impressive debut,
Market share in cur core 35-44 age group
continued to grow, and we are now market
leader in all age groups above 35.

Retail operations

Overall, this was another excellent yeor in
the Clarks/K chain, with an even spread of
gains across regions, genders and the
small, medivm and laege sicres, As with the
previous year, it was a wet Summer and it
was only the effective managemens of the
Sale which supported the first half result.
Through most of the year we have traded
consistently 7-10 percentage points ahead
of the rest of the market combined — a fine
achievement,

In the Autumn we ran an extremely
successiul poster campaign demonstrating
the greatly improved styling of Menr’s and
Women's product. The Clarks brand
continues to benefit from all of the
repositioning work around the slogan
"Act your shoe size, not your age”.

The new “Cavlder Maore” Clarks
shopfits are performing well up to plan and
ahead of the rest of the chain by a large
margin. During the year we expanded our
presence in ocutoftown shopping malls,
with new stores opening in Cribbs
Causeway and Trafford Park. We are also
toking every opportunity to relocate to
bigger sites in large city centres, and 1o
open large shops in the remaining mall

developments with planning consent.

In December we opened a newly designed
K store in Manchester, and there are plans
to redevelop the chain over the next

few years.

Clearance

The new management in the Clearance
Division have started work on rebalancing
stocks, clearing old stock and improving
margin coniribution. Sales were flat, but
profit contribution has improved. Although
stocks are higher than at the same point last
vear, the overall quality of inventory is
better, and with two additional cuilets
operating we should now have demand
and supply in balance,

Franchise

This has been a yeor of real progress for
the Royalty Franchisees, with their trading
pattern now getting ¢loser fo that of
Owned Retail, which is driving much

of their increase in turnover and profit.

The news of this success is spreading

and several wholesale franchise businesses
have now elected to come over to the
Rovalty format.

Ravel

Sales in the chain were flat, and a £1m
profit urned into ¢ £1m loss, mainly due 1o
rising costs, and the peor performance of
the Women's range ct full price in both
seasons. The management team has been
replaced and the Ravel operations
integrated into the Clarks and K chains.
Spring/Summer 1999 has started well,
and we hope that a consistenily better
performance will be achieved with the
new organisation.

UK Wholesale

Our Wholesale team have made further
progress in all genders. The business we
lost when the BSC concession business was
dismembered has now lergely been
replaced with new concession operators,
and we conlinue to build business in

major department stores, and the major
outoftown operators. Ireland had another
excellent year. We have reorganised the
home shopping business, and expect to see
the benefits in 1999,




International

Only the Asian crisis ook some of the gilt
off another fine performance. Sales rose
from £80.8m to £9C.8m, and would have
been higher without the sirength of the
pound. Volumes leapt chead by 18.4%
with Women's advancing strongly. The
highlight of the year was the phenomenal
growlh in our Japanese business, mostly
coming from the Originals range. Southern
Europe performed well, as did the Middle
East; by conlast, sales in Asia outside
Japan feli by a third.

During the year we established a
separate Originals product group and
brand identity. This is now beginning to
aftract the attention of the younger customer,
and we are establishing appropriate
channels of distribution in @ number of
markets. Another initiative, which is proving
successful, is the franchise shop concept, or
shop-inshop format. We have a number of
units on test in Europe, with very promising
resulis. Our goal over the next three years
will be 1o establish over 100 shops ccross
the key markets.

Clarks Companies North America

Scles increased modestly, from £157.6m
o £167 .5m, whilst trading profit dropped
from £11.0m to £2.2m. Afier last year's
enormous improvement, this year's result
was only a slight setback. There were two
main reasons for the decline in profitability.
Firstly, with tough frading conditions in our
traditionat deporrmenr store customers, we
were forced 1o cut prices in order to
maintain valumes. Secondly, we lost money
in the retail business, which could not be
made up in wholesaling activities. On the
positive side, both Clarks and Bostenian
performed well, especially the Clarks
Women's ranges.

Several important steps have been token
to improve cur competitive edge in the
future. Firstly, we ore closing the Back Bay
retail fascio and looking to reduce
significantly the number of unprofitable
Hanover stores. Secondly, we are
expanding and automating the central
distribution centre; and thirdly, a new
product development cenire has been
established, which will support the building
of exciting product ranges over the next
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few years. Another important initiative is the
upgrading of cur supply chain and
planning systems, which will encble us te
deliver a much enhanced service to the
customer in future.

Australia

Very litle went right for us in Australia.
Sales fell from A$P1.3m to A$20.8m, and
losses increased sharply from A$1.9m to
A$5.7m. We lost market share in the adult
Hush Puppies wholesale business, although
there were some spois of success in the
Men’s business. Although we improved

the specification of our Children’s product
this was al the expense of margins,

with @ substantial loss in confribufion.

As commented eorlier, we have now made
arrangements to source our Children's
preduct offshore, which will improve the
margin position, With an agreement now
recched to sell the Footrest refail chain, the
new feam’s aftention will be focused on
rebuilding disiribution in our major
customers. With two of the best brands in
the marketploce we can be confident of
restoring the business to profitability in the
short term.

Sourcing and manufacturing

This was cleady a difficult year in our
fectories, with the announcement of closures
and redundancies. it has, therefore, been
an excellent resulf to return a small surplus
against budget. This was achieved mainly
through careful cost controls, and the faster
than planned reduction of employment in
plants which are closing. During the year
we made 13.6 nillion pairs compared
with 13.3 millicn pairs last year. For the
second year running there were useful
reductions in the cost of manufactured
products, a major factor here being the
offshore sourcing of more uppers.

Once all the changes have been
implemented we expect fo have balanced
capacity with internaf requirements,
However, we stilf need to improve
forecasting within the business, as
commiiments on factories are apt ic move
around continucusly threugh the year. Over
the past two years, virually ail plents have
had a change of general manager, and
there has been a significant uprgreding of
skills in development offices. Thus foctories

such ¢s Bomstaple and the Kendal Springer
plant have continued to make improvements
to product aesthetics and to. innovate with
new constructional ideas. Bushacre has
seen demand increase for stitchdowns, now
that the cornerstitched production is coming
to an end. Dowlish Ford regained control
over the Indian upper pipeline, and the
new moufded preduct is very exciting.
Kentside has greatly improved product
preseniation and exfactory costs. The stoff
at Rushill and isca, both of which are
closing, have worked hard to maintain
levels of productivity. We are hoping for a
good Summer to help demand for excellen:
canvas product coming out of Millom,

This year we will source 24 million pairs
from external suppliers. Our strategy is to
form eelationships with several key suppliers
to ensure maximum flexibility with lower
cost. We are devoling more resources to
the development of new strategic sources,
and there remain significont opportunities
available fo the company o increase
margins. A major area we will be working
on is inbound logistics, where lead times
and costs can be reduced considerably,

Conclusions

Many importan: issues have been resolved
in 1998, whilst the forward sales
momentum has been sustained. During the
next year we shall have 1o implement
successfully a lot of the decisions already
taken. We remain conscicus of our
shorticomings: products must be further
improved; we can source more effectively;
and deliveries can be manoged better.
However, amangst our staff, who have
made a magnificent contribution this year,
there is a general feeling of confidence

in the future, and a conviction that the
company is on the right track.

Tim Parker Chief Executive




Financial Review

Resulis for the year

Turnover from operations increased by
6.6% during the vear, 1o £792.2m.

Our UK retail operations sustained an
excellent forward momentum, delivering o -
sales increcse of 9.4%. This represents an
outstanding achievement given the widely
reported downturn in footwear and apparel
retailing in the second half.

We also saw significont growth in our
international branded wholesaling business,
which achieved o 12% improvement over
last year.

Profit before interest and exceptional
charges rose by 7.9% 1o £42.5m and
represents further solid progress on the
trend of profit recovery established in the
previous year.

Defailed commentaries on the divisional
trading performance during the year are
provided in the Chief Executive’s Report
and Chairman’s Statement.

Accounting policies

The only change in accounting palicy this
year results from the adoption of FRS1G
as described on page 29, buf this has
nc effect on the financial statements for
the year.

Presentation of resuls

Disconfinued activities

Cur Australian management feam will
complete the disposal of its Footrest refail
chain on &th Aprit 1999, The turnover and
operating loss of the choin have been shown
s discontinued operations on the face of
the profit and loss account as required by
FRS3. Comparative figures for the prior
year have been resiated accordingly. A net
loss of £4.2m arising on the saie of this
business has also been included as an
exceptional item after operating profit and
before profit before interest.

Excepficnal items

As in previous years, we have sought to
assist shareholders by highlighting the
performance of the core foohwear and
other operations of the group and by
distinguishing this as clearly as possible
from the impact of exceptional restructuring
expenditure. We have therefore adopted
a columnar format for the profit and loss
account which identifies exceptional
iterns under ¢ separate column heading.
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Exceptional costs arising from business
restrucfuring activity amounts to £34.8m
before taxation. These costs have been
further sub-analysed between those arising
as part of operating profit at £28.4m and
the write down or disposal of fixed cssets,
which have been included below operating
orofit in accordance with paragraph 20 of
Financial Reporting Standard No. 3 (FRS3).

The "paragraph 207 items total £6.4m,
and are offset in the profit and loss account
by gains on disposal of tangible fixed
assefs amounting fo £1.8m, giving ¢ net
cost of £4.6m. Appropriate provision has
been made for future restructuring activity in
accordance with the new Financial
Reporfing Standard No. 12 {FRS12).

The resuliing profit before interest and
cfter exceptional charges was £9.5m.

The principal components of the
restructuring costs are described in note 2b
to the financial statements.

Interest

The group interest charge of £3.2m (1998:

£3.1m) reflects the impact of incregsed
average borrowing levels during the year,
offset by lower UK interest rates during the
iatter part of the year.

Taxation

The effective tox rate for the year on
samings belfore exceptional charges is
37%. This is considerably higher than

the UK stondard rate of corporation tax
because a significant proportion of group
profits before iox are derived from overseas
subsidiary companies in America, Europe
and Japan, where tax rates are generally
higher thar in the UK. Additionally, the tax
charge is adversely alfected by trading
losses sustained in Australia for which no
tax relief is presently available.

Tex refief on excepfional resiructuring
costs is restricted to only 15% since no
relief can be token in relation to the
Australian element of £12.1m, and due to
other partially or wholly disaliowable items
consisting primarily of write offs of tangible
fixed assets. The group loss after taxaltion
and exceptional items amounted to £3.6m
{1998: profit of £21.2m).

With effect from &th April 1999,
Advance Corporation Tax will be
abolished. Dividends will continue to carry
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a tax credit which will ensure that
shareholders do not pay any additional
income tex as a result of this change, but
the credit will no fonger be refundable to
those shareholders who are not fully kaxable
on their dividend income.

Acquisition of minority interest

The group has owned o 51% equity interest
in Clarks Japan for o number of years.

For consolidation purposes, Clarks Japan
has been trected as a subsidiory undertaking
because C & J Clark management have
exercised effective control over policy and
operational decision making.

Curing the yecr, the group completed
the purchase of the remaining 49% interest
from its partners, Okura & Co. limited, on
19th August 1998.

Balance sheet

The group’s ¢losing operating capital
increased by approximately £22m
compared to the 1998 level. The increase
is associated partly with a planned rise

in capital investment to support the growth
of our UK refail trading operations, in
particular the roll out of our new shopfit
concept o a further 43 Clarks shops during
the year, Working copital also rose by 8%;
whilst finished stock hos in general been
well controlled and ended the year below
plan, trade receivables increased sharphy
as a result of strong wholesale sales to
international markets in the last quaster.
Provision for future restructuring costs has
been included within provisions for
liabilities and charges and where
appropriate, against the reievant

asset category.

Year end net borowings increased by
£17.5m to £52.5m. in addition fo funding
higher capital investment and working
capital requirements in the UK as described
above, it also proved necessary to provide
increased financial support to our Ausiralian
subsidiary company. Australia experienced
very difficult rading conditions throughout
the year and incurred substantial freding
losses, resulting in higher local borrowings
and a £6m increcse in the use of the
group's revolving credit facility. A further
contributory factor was the cash effect of
restructuring activity in the year, which
amounted 1o £4.2m. The group’s balence




sheet remains fundamentally strong and
well capable of supporting the
management feam’s plans to build upon the
confinuing strong growth in footwear sales
and profitability. Gearing remeins
safisfactorily low at 24% (1998 — 15%).
Shareholders’ funds reduced by £10.7m
during the vear to £215.6m, The movement
comprises retained losses for the year after
exceptional costs and dividends of £10.6m
transferred o profit and loss reserves, and
a negative exchange translation adjustment
of £0. 1m which arises from retranslating
the net worth of overseas subsidiary
companies at the relevant closing rafes
of exchange.

Treasury operations

Treasury activities are governed by policies
and procedures approved by the Board of
Directors and supervised, on a day to day
basis, by senior management.

Borrowing faciliies are managed by a
central treasury function responsible fo the
Finance Director. They comprise a revolving
credit fecility with a syndicate of major
banks and an overdraft facility. The
revolving credit facility is due to be
renegetiated in the ¢coming year.

Currency exposure A freosury commitiee
manages currency exposure by antering
into forward exchange contracts supported
by detailed forecasts of future transaction
flows. It is the policy of the group fo restrict
foreign exchange activilies to those
required 1o hedge underlying trading
operations. Currency oplions may be
purchased within agreed guidelines.
With the implementation of the Euro as ¢
whelesale currency on IstJanuary 1999,
forward exchange cover has been arranged
for the future by offsetiing for the first time
soles and puichases within the Eurozone,
thereby achieving & natural hedge in
addition to a saving in transaction costs.
The treasury commitiee reports to the
Board on a quarterdy basis.

Year 2000

The group is aware of many potential fypes
of problem with computer systems and other
date-aware microchip based equipment

in the change 1o the next millennium.

To address these problems, we initicted a
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programme in early 1996 and are now
well advanced with implementing a detailed
action plan which follows the BSI PD-200C0
definition of complionce. Ensuring Year
2000 compliance of our business critical
systems by mid 1999 at the latest is the top
priority for our IT function. Whilst we cannct
be cerlain of aveiding business disruption
in all areas, for example through the
upstream impact on customers and
suppliers, contingency plans are being
developed and tested to minimise the risk
of business interruption from such effects,
The main contents of the Year 2000
programme are as follows:

a) to identify and replece or modify

as necessary any noncompliant
daterelated hardware and software
used in the group’s IT operations;

to ensure that any nonT embedded
processors used in the group'’s operations
and premises are identified, checked for
date function, and replaced or modified
08 necessary;

to contaet ol significant frading partners
in order to establish that they are taking
appropriate oction, fo assess any
potential risk to our business and to
prepare contingency plans.

b

C

Revenue costs to dote specifically related to
the Year 2000 programme amount to
approximately £2.4m. Further costs to
complete the programme are not expected
fo exceed £2.4m. This excludes
expenditure on planned upgrades which
are part of normal business systems
renewal. All costs related to the Year 2000
programme have been charged o the
profit and loss account in accordance

with UITF Ne. 20.

Economic and Monetary Union (EMU)

The group completed preparations for the
infroduction of the Single European
Cutrency on st January this year. Changes
have been made where appropriate to
fransaction systems o enable payments and
receipts fo be made and recerded in Euro.
A steering group was formed in ecry
1998 fo determine the most appropriate
business response and to formulate o
detailed plan. The plan involves managing
the future upgrade of information systems,
the development of skaff training

programmes and the further business
process changes which will be required to
encbie our European businesses to cope
with Euro-denominated rading during the
transition period leading up to the first issue
of notes and coins in 2002,

In the short term the group does not
expect the costs or benefits from the
introduction of the Euro to have ¢ material
impact on business operations or rasuls.
We do not anticipate that the results of the
group will be reporied in Eurc unless there
is a decision for the UK to enier Economic
and Monetary Union.

Pensions

The UK pension schemes remain waeil
funded. Due to the increasing use of market
value bosed epproaches to actuarial
valuation of pension funds coupled with the
voiatility of the UK equity market during the
year, it has proved unusually difficult to
establish a relicble measure of the pensicon
surplus for the purposes of Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice No. 24
[SSAP 24). On the advice of the actuaries,
the group has baosed its accounting
assumpticns on the surplus derived from the
last formal actuarial valuation in April
1997 The tofal cost of all group pension
schemes net of experience surpluses
credited to the profit and loss account is
shown in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Share market

In accordance with the Articles of
Association, share valuations are prepared
twice a year by an independent firm of
chartered aecountants. There were two
share circulors during the year. In June
843,564 Crdinary Shares were offered for
sale ot £2.90 and in Ocicber 318,692
Ordinary Shares were offered for sale

at £2.70. Both offers were over subscribed
af those prices.

Mark McMenemy Finance Director




Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 315t January 1999,

Business review
The principal activities of the company and its related subsidiaries are worldwide shoe retailing and manufacturing, and related rades.

Further details of the operations and the trading results are set out on pages 24 1o 43.
The retained loss for the year was £10.6m after dividends pcid and proposed of £6.6m.

Directors
The current direciors of the company are listed on page 4. Norman Finn was appointed on 8th January 1999, Harriet Hall
and Benjamin Lovell will be oppointed as norrexecutive directors on 7th May 1999, Steven MNichols resigned on 8th May 1998,

Caroline Gould and lance Clark will retire on 7th May 1999,

In accordance with the company’s Memorandum and Aciicles, ol the directors are required to stand for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting,

Details of the directors” service contracts are given in the Remunerction Report on pages 18 to 20.

Employees

The Board believes that the principle of equaiity of treatment and cpportunity is of fundamentai importance. Its fong held aim is to provide
just and fair treatment for all employees. In accordance with this policy, the only personal attributes which will be taken info account in
making decisions cbout employees are those which relate directly to actual or potenticl performance.

Throughout the group, pracedures for consultation with, and the involvement of, employees are in cperation, as appropriate to the
circumstances of the individual businesses. Information on matters of concern to employees s given through a variety of presentations,
briefings, bulletins and reports,

The environment

' The company recognises that care and concern for the environment and the community are o fundamental part of the group’s strategy.
It is the company's infention to stive continuously to minimise any adverse environmental impact of business aciivities, to comply with
ol relevant environmental legislation and o promote @ caring affitude o the environment amongst its employees.

Donations
Donations for charitcble purposes mode during the year amount to £25,000 (1998 — £18,000). No donaticns were made for

political purposes.

Creditor payment policy

The group’s pelicy is to use standard payment terms, payment being at the end of the moath following the invoice date, except for goods
for resale which are genercily 30 days.

For all rade creditors it is the company's policy to

* settle terms of payment with suppliers

* ensure that supgliers are aware of the terms of poyment

* mcke every effort to meeat agreed payment dates provided that the agreed terms and conditions have been met by the suppliers.

Corporate governance
The company remains commitied to the highest standards of corporate govemance. A report is set out on pages 22 and 23.
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Directors’ interests
The interests of the directors in office at 3 1st January 1999 in the share copital of the company were:

As ot As ot
As ot 31t January As at 318 Jonuvary
31st Janvery 199¢ 31st Jarvory I

1999 Exetutive 1998 Execulive
QOrdinary Share Ordinary Share

Shares* Trust Shores™® Toust*™
Roger Pedder 3,262,236 - 3,135,078 -
Tim Parker 254,497 - 178,866 121,059
Mark McMenemy 117,177 - 76,833 121,059
Peter Bolliger 47,751 - 5,218 121,059
lance Clark 9,547,844 - 9,353,915 -
Caroline Gould 2,011,641 - 1,926,427 -

* The shareholdings shown do not, in every case, represent the beneficial interests held.

**In 1998, the execulive direclors, as polential bensficicries under the company’s share schemes, were deemed to be interested in the 121,059 C & ] Clark lid
nongllocated Ordinary Shares held by the C & ] Clark Executive Share Trust. These did aol represent beneficial interests. In 1999 there are no non-aflocated
Ordinary Shares held by the Trust.

In 1992 certain directors were granted entiflements under the Shadow Share Scheme, the details of which are given in the Remuneration
Report on pages 18 to 20.

The directors have no inferests in confracts or arrangements during the year which require disclosure.
A list of transactions with related parties is given in nofe 25 to the financial statements.

There were no changes in directors’ shars interests between the end of the year and 12th March 1999 {being one month before the date
of the notice of the Annual General Meeting).

Auditors
In accordance with Section 384 of the Companies Act 1985, a rasolution for the reappointment of KPMG o3 oudilors of the company 1s
te be proposed at the forthcoming Annual Gereral Meeting.

By ader of the B

J .
Judith Derbyshire Company Secretary

31st March 1999
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Remuneration Report

The Appointments and Remuneration Commitiee is responsible for the appointment of axecutive direciors 1o the Board of C & ) Clark Limited
and senior managers within the group and for approving an appropriate level of remuneration ail within the principles which the Commitee
hos determined and which are set out below. The fees of nonexecutive directors are defermined by the Board.

The Committes consists of all nonexecutive directors and is chaired by Lance Clark. Roger Pedder attends, excepl when the Committes
considers his remuneration.

Remuneration policy

It is the policy of the Committee to consider and approve remuneration packages and other contractual terms that attract, retain and
motivate managers of the caolibre required to successfully manage an international group of the size and complexity of C & § Clark Limited.
In so doing the Committse qims fo ensure that such packages are balanced but not excessive and that incentive schemes are so sructured
thet they reflect the levels paid generally to such executives,

The Combined Code
The Beard considers that they have complied with the Combined Code provisions relating to directors” remuneration and have followed the
provisions in Schedule B 1o the Combined Cede.

Directors” emoluments

Fees or Performonce l.ﬁffnm* Total Tota!
sakaries  refated bonuses Benehits (deferred shares) 1999 1998
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive directors:
Tim Parker 291 338 17 152 498 590
Mark McMenemy 155 20 9 85 269 313
Peter Bolliger 159 64 10 85 318 324
Non-execuiive directors;
Roger Pedder 97 - 9 - 106 88
lance Clork 26 - 1 - 27 26
Michael Garner 26 - - - 26 25
Caroline Gould 18 - 1 - 19 18
Steven Nichols (resigned 8th May 1998) 5 - - - 5 18
Norman Finn (appointed 8th January 1999) 2 - - - 2 -

* See poge 20 for further details.
Benefits arising from employment by the company mainly relate to the provision of company cars,

Directors’ pension entilements

The execufive directors and the Chairman olf participate in the company’s pension fund. The fund is contributory and is governed by

an independent trust. Their normal refirement age under the scheme is 0. Their normal pension accrual is at the rate of one forfieth of
pensionable pay for each year of pensionable service. Early retirement, with company consent, is permitied at age 50 onwards subject
fo an actuarial reduction to the seerved pension of up to 23%. However, as shown in the notes below certain individuals” pensions
accrual under the fund is restricted by the "Earnings Cap” infreduced under the 1989 Finance Act and applicable o members jeining
Infand Revenue approved schemes on or after st June 198%. For those individuals indicated, the company has set up separate pansion
arrangements known as Funded Unapproved Retirement Benefit Schemes (FURBS). These are “money purchase” schemes which are
designed to provide a fund on leaving/retirament which is broadly equivalent in value to the shortfall in the target benefit payable under
the compony’s pension fund arising from the application of the “Earnings Cap”.
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For death before etirement, a capital sum equal fo four fimes salary is poyable. A spouse’s pension is also payable and this is limited
by the Inland Reveaue’s "Eamings Cap” restiictien. For decth in refirement, o spouse’s pension of 50% of the member's pre-commutction
pension is payabie. In the event of death after leaving service but prior to commencement of pension, @ spouse’s pension of 50% of
the cecrued preserved pension is payabie. In all circumstances, children’s allowances are also payable, usually up fo the age of 18.
Substantial protection is also offered in the event of serious ill health.

Postrefitement pension increases are guarcnteed ot the rate of price inflation subject to a limit of 8%% p.a. compound between the date
of retirement and each annual pension review.

ﬁdgi!iorplnpn_ens%n ?Cr"id Accrued entilement under

including inflarion during the Senior Executive Pension Contributions 1o Members’ Contribulions to
& ot Service yeor ended 3138 Jonuary 1999 - p

Nalosy 3w Joruory in the Senior EXGCUIvE —rrrrrrrrrn Scheme atyeorend .. FURBS inyeorended | company fund in year ended
1954 196% Pension Scheme 1999 1608 1999 1998 1999 1998
Years Years £000 p.a. £000 p.a. £000 p.a. £000 £000 £000 £000
Tim Parker* 43 3 3 9 & 99 @3 5 5
Mark McMenemy* 40 2 3 7 4 29 26 5 5
Peter Bolliger* 54 4 3 13 10 20 17 5 5
Roger Pedder 57 4 3 1 8 - - 4 4

* Individuals' benefits under the company’s pension find are subject to an “Eamings Cop” [£87,600 of 318t January 1999) and a seporate pension arrangement
{FURBS) has been set up to broadly compensale for the effect of the “Earnings Cap”.

The Appointments and Remuneration Cemmitiee agreed on his appointment that Roger Pedder shall have o pension entitlement of tworthirds
of the "Earings Cap” (£87,600 p.a.] ot age 60, less the value of his own personal pension plans. He is o member of the company’s
pension fund. His annual salary has been reduced by £60,000 (1998 — £62,000), an amount caleulated by the scheme actuaries,
which is broadly equivalent fo the amount by which the benefit of this ertilement exceeds the benefils payable under the company’s
pension fund.

Shadow Share Scheme

A long term cash incenfive scheme, named the “Shadow Share Scheme” and designed to mirmor a share option scheme as far as
practically possitile, was established in 1992 for senior mancgement. The potential rewards of the scheme are directly linked to the
increase in value of the company’s shares. Entilements were granted at mulfiples of salaries up o o maximum of four times, and may be
exercised at the earliest of the cchievement of set performance torgets, the participant’s death or cessation of employment, or the take-over
or liquidation of the company. If not previously exercised, entilements lapse on the tenth anniversary of the date they were granted.

The performance targets require that over a continuous three year period the earings per share grow at a rate in excess of retail
price infiation and the return on shareholders’ funds exceed the yield on long term giits. Any amounts which may become payable
under the Shodow Share Scheme are provided for out of the company's profits in line with anticipated movemenis in the value of the
company’s shares.
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Shadow Share Scheme continued

Senior managers

Five senior managers have outstanding entitlements under the scheme at base values of £G.61 per unit over 100,000 units, £1.30 per unit
over 236,153 units and £1.31 per unit over 34,657 unils.

Directors
During the year, Peter Bolliger exercised his entilement aver 100,000 units at an exercise price of £2.50.

Provision for amounts payable on the exercise of entitements has been made in full.

North America Shadow Share Scheme

On 1st February 1996, a Shadow Share Benefits Scheme was established covering a number of senior executives of the Clarks Companies,
North America. The scheme is a long term cash incentive scheme, the potential rewards of which are linked to the increase in value of

C & ] Clark America, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Other long term incentive schemes

The Appointments and Remuneration Commitiee has agreed to continue the scheme to align the potential rewards of successful performance
with the interests of all stakehelders. In each year if certain perfermance targets have been achieved, shores to the value of up to 75% of
the participant’s basic salary will be acquired for the scheme. These shares will normally be held in trust for thiee years, and will then vest
in the participant. The targets have been sef by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee to increase each yeor and spacify the
required minimum level of return on capital employed, pre and post foxation profits and earnings per share.

The performance targets achieved during the year on the basis of trading results before exceptional items would have produced awards in
excess of 70% of pay. However, the Appoiniments and Remuneration Committea has exercised its discretionary powers to limit the award
o 50% of pay, which is deemed to be fair in all the circumstances.

Tim Parker, Mark McMenemy and Peter Bolliger were the anly parficipants of this scheme during the year.

Share entilements are as follows:

Tim Mark Perer

Parker Mechenemy Bolliger

At 37st Janvary 1998 136,965 70,833 -
Entilements granted during the year 75,631 40,344 41,353
At 31st January 1999 212,596 111,177 41,353

On the adoption of the Annual Report & Accounts at the Anaual General Meeting, Tim Parker will become entitled 1o a further 56,322
shares, Mark MchMenemy to a further 31,482 shares and Peter Bolliger 1o 31,482 shares, assuming o base price of £2.70 per share
{being the latest published share price}.

Service confracts
The Appointments and Remuneration Commitiee has adopted the policy shat any new executive directors should have rolling service
contracts of not more than one year, subject to an initial pericd of not more than two yecrs on oppointment.

All the executive direciors have one year rolling contracts. Roger Pedder holds a two year rolling service contract as non-executive
Chairman; the other non-executive directors do not have service contracts.

20 Remunerafion Report




Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a tue and fair view of the sigte

of aifairs of the company and group and of the profit or less for that pericd. ln preparing these financial statements the directors are required
to:

¢ select suitable accounting policies and ther apply them consistently;

¢ mcke judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject % any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statemants;

* prepare the financial statements on the going concam basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group will continve in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting racords which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finaaciol position
of the company ond 1o enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They have general
responsibility for toking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other iregularities.

Report of the auditors to the members of

C & J Clark Limited

We have audited the financial statements on pages 24 to 43.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, including as described above, the financial statements. Our responsibilities, as
independent auditors, are established by statute, the Auditing Practices Board and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as 1o whether the financiol statements give a tue and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act. We also report to yeu if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the financial siatements, if the company
has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received ail the information and explanations we requice for our audit,

or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and liansactions with the group is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annuat Repert, including the corporate govermnance statement, and consider whether
it is consistent with the audited financic| statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become oware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

In addition to our cudit of the financial statements, the direciars hove instructed us to review their corperate governance statement as if the
company were required fo comply with the listing Rules of the london Stock Exchange in relation to these matters, We review whether the
stalement en pages 22 ard 23 reflects the company’s compliance with those provisions of the Combined Code specified for audit review by
those rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's corporate governance
procedures or its internal controls.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on @
test basis, of evidence relevant 1o the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directars in the preporation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting pelicies are
appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasenable assurance that the financial statemenis are fres from material misstatement, whether coused by
fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial stalements.
Opinion
In our opinion the financial statlements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group as at 31st January 1699
and of the loss of the greup for the ysar then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985,

d

KPMG Chartered Accounfants and Registered Auditors

Bristol
31st March 199¢

21




Corporate Governance

The group is committed i high standards
of corporate governence. The Board is
accountable to the company’s shareholders
for geod governance and this statement
describes how the group applies the
principles identified in the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance.

The directors believe that the group
complies with the provisions of the
Combined Code and that it has complied
throughout the year, with the following
exceplions;

a) the senior independent director was
nct appointed until 8ih fanvary
1999;

b} a special resolution will be
proposed at the Annual Genercl
Meeting relating to the retirement by
rotation of the Chief Executive.

The Board of Directors

The Board currently consists of the
nonexecuiive Chairman, four other
non-executive directors and three execulive
directors.

The Board meets regularly throughout the
year and on additional occasions as
required. The Board has adopted a
schedule of matters specifically reserved
o itself for decision and is commitied

to ensuring that preper standards of
corporate governance are maintained
thrcoughout the group.

Possible new non-executive directors are
suggested by members of the Board and
by recruitment consultants, who are also
used 1o assist the process. Candidctes are
considered by all directors.

Whenever a new direcior is appointed
io the Board, he or she is provided with
access to appropriate fraining if necessary.
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In accordance with the Articles of
Association, non-executive directors
[excluding a nonexecutive Chairman}
must refire at the conclusion of the next
Ordinary General Meefing after they have
completed nine years of service, or upon
recching 65 years of age. Executive
directors normally refire after reaching &0
years of age. In addition, directors retire
by rotation, and are eligible for reelection
at least every three years.

There is an agreed procedure for directors
to take independent professional advice

if necessory at the company’s expense.
This s in addiiion to the access which
every director hes to the compeny
secretory. The company secretary is
charged by the Board with ensuring that
Board procedures are followed.

Michael Garner, was appointed as the
senior independent director on 8th Januory
1999 and corcems relating to the
executive management of the company or
the performance of the other non-executive
directers can be raised with him if for any
reason it is inappropriate to raise them
with the Chairman.

To enable the Board to funcfion effeciively
and allew directors to discharge their
responsibilities, full and timely access is
given fo all relevant information. In the
case of board meetings, this consists

of a comprehensive set of papers,
including regular business progress
reports and discussicn decuments
regarding specific matiers.

Full details of directors’ remuneration and @
statement of the company’s remunarction
policy is set out in the Remuneration Report
which appears on pages 18 1o 20.

The Board's nonrexecutive directors bring
strong independent judgement and
considercble knowledge and experience to
the Board's deliberations, They receive a
fee, but do not participate in any bonus ar
incentive schemes or qualify for pension
benefits. The Chairman receives a salary
but does not participate in any bonus or
incentive schemes.

Board commiitees

The Board has eppointed the following
committees to deal with specific aspects
of the group’s affairs:

Audit Committes

The Commitiee consists of all the non-
executive directors. It has formal terms of
reference covering dil the points
recommended by the Combined Cede.

It meets at least twice @ year ond ifs duties
include the review of internal financial
contral throughout the group, approving the
group’s accounting policies and reviewing
the half year and annual financial
statements before submission

to the Board. The independence and
objectivity of the external auditors s also
considered. The split between audit and
non-audit fees for the year under review
appears on page 32. The Finance
Director, other executive directors, external
auditors and company managers attend
the meetings of the Commitiee as
appropfiate.

Appointments and Remunerafion
Commiftee

The Committee consists of all the
non-executive directors. s responsibilities
are to approve the remuneration and cther
benefits of the executive directors and the
senior management team and to receive
reports of the terms and conditions of other
senior execulives.




Share Valuation Comimittee

The Commitiee censists of the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and at least two
non-executive directors. It meets twice a
year with representatives of the valuers of
the company's shares, together with other
advisers, to review the general trading
background, published information and
other appropriate information to assist the
valuers in giving the valuation of the
shares.

Board Pensions Committee

The Commitiee reviews and agrees

any proposal for changes to pension
schemes for employees. All significant
changes are recommended to the Board
for opproval.

Family Shareholders’ Council

Fomily shareholders representing 72% of
the Ordinary Shares of the company have
formed a council to aid communication
between shareholders and the Board of
Cirectors, to assist in the implementation
of corporate governance policies and to
work with the Board in matters affecting
the marketability of shares and towards
the achievement of any potential flotation.
The Council may nominate two persons for
appeintment as norexecutive directors of
the company. These are currently lance
Clark and Caroline Gouid. They will be
replaced by Harriet Mall and Ben Lovell
at the Annual General Meeting.

Communication

The company places a great deal of
importance on communication with its
shareholders. The full report and accounts
are available to all shareholders.

All shareholders have the opportunity to
put questions at the company’s Annuc
General Meeting and the Chairman makes
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a presentafion at the meeting to highlight
the key business developments during the
financial year.

Audit and internal confrol

The respective rasponsibilities of the
directors and the auditors in connection
with the accounts are explained on

page 271 and the statement of the direciors
on going concarn appears below.

The Board is responsible for maintaining
a system of internal control designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute
assuronce regarding:

» the safeguarding of assets against
unicuthorised use or disposition;

* the maintenance of proper accounting
records and the reliability of financial
information used within the business or
for publication.

Key procedures that have been established
and are designed o provide effective
internal control are:

Control framework

The directors have put in place an
organisaiional siructure with clearly defined
lines of responsibility and delegation

of authority.

Process

The group has a comprehensive system of
financicl reporting. The annual budget of
each operating unit is approved by the
executive directers and the Board approves
the overall group budget. Performance
against budget is reviewed by the Board
each month and any significant variances
are examined. Detgiled performance
reviews are carried out by management.
There are clearly defined policies for
capital expenditure including appropriate
autherisation levels. large capital projects

and company acquisitions require Board
approval. A number of functions, which
operate within policies and delegated
authority limits established by the Board,
report 1o the Board periodically.

These include treasury operations,
corporate kaxation, pension fund and
risk management,

Review

Operating managament has a clear
respensibility to ensure that the group’s
internal control objectives are met,
Cperating units are required fo certify
annually their compliance with infernal
control objectives. A businesswide review
of internal conirols has been carried out
and reviewed by the Audit Committes.

Forma! guidance on the review of non-
financial internal controls hos still 1o be
developed by the institute of Chartered
Accountants in England ond Wales
{ICAEW). The directors will seek to ensure
that the group is compliant with such
guidance when it is issued. Despite the
absence of such detailed guidance, the
directors consider that they have
nevertheless observed the principles of the
Combined Code during the vear.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have
a reasonable expeciation that the group
and the company have adequate resources
to confinue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly they
continue fo adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.




Group profit and loss account

for the year ended 31st January 1999

Before
exceptional
iterns
Irestered)

Exceptianal
items

1998
£000

Tornover
Continuing operations
Discontinued operotions

792,210
(748,651)

792,210
(777 ,067)

743,141
(701,350}

41,721
{2,400}

Operafing profit/{loss}
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Costs of demerger

Profit/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets

in continuing operations

loss on disposal of disconfinued operations

42,472

(28,416}

{414)
(4,180)

14,056

{414)

39,391

Profit/[loss} on ordinary activities before interest
Net interesi payable

Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation on profit/floss) on ordinary activities

39,271
{14,681

6,261

36,337

35,003

Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities after taxafion
Minority interest

Profit/(loss) for the financial year

Dividends paid and preposed
Distribution on demerger

{1,045}

(17,389

(3,627)
(17,389

The distribution on demerger shown in the comparatives represents the net book value of assets which left the group as port of the demerger of
the Factory Outlet Centres. This was described in paragraph 10 of the circular to the sharehelders dated 25th April 1967,

Prior year comparatives have been restated 1o show the tumover and operating result from the Australion retail business within discontinued

aclivities.

The noles on pages 28 to 43 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance sheets

as at 31st January 1999

Group Group Company Company
1999 1958 1 1
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assels 11 101,354 Q7,496 - -
Investments 12 879 1,042 77,182 77,182

Current assets

Stock i3 187,991 188,491 - -
Debtors i4 82,820 71,551 83,627 83,027
Cash at bank and in hand 31,406 29,667 - -

Creditors ~ amounts falling due within one year 15 [139,117) (129,983 {3,627} 3,627)
Net current assets 143,100 159,726 80,000 80,000
Total asseis less current liabilities 265,333 258,264 157,182 157,182
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year 16 {26,450) {23,080} - -
Provisions for liabilities and charges 17 {23,275) {7,989 - -
. 215,608 227,195 157,182 157,182
Minority interest - 871) - -
Net assets afiributable to shareholders 215,608 226,324 157,182 157,182
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 77,182 77,182 77,182 77,182
Merger reserve 20 15,145 15,145 - -
Profit and loss account 21 123,281 133,997 80,000 80,000
Shareholders’ funds 215,608 226,324 157,182 157,182

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf on 315t March 1699,

Roger A Pedder K CL/I?L MOC?‘:‘/_7

Mark McMenemy MQA A M

The notes on pages 28 to 43 form part of these financicl statements.
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Group cash flow statement

for the year ended 31st January 1999

Cash flow from operating activities

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Taxation

Capital expenditure and financial investment

29,353

(3,165)
(14,804)
[21,569)

(3,200}
(6, 146)
(13,539)

Acquisitions and disposals
Dividends paid

{t0,185)
(832)

(12,976)
3,830
{3,010)

Reconcdiliation of net cash flow o movement in net borrowings
Decrease in cash in the period
Cash fiow from increase in debt and lease financing

(6,531)

(8,103)
(4,153)

Change n net borrowings resulling from cash Hows
New finance leases
Translation differences

{12,256
(580)

Movement in net borrowings for the period
Opening net borrowings

(17,558)
(34,960)

{11,802)
[(23,158)
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Group statement of total recognised gains and losses

for the year ended 31st January 1999

1999 1608
£000 £000
{Loss)/ profit for the financial year {3,917 20,801
Currency translation losses on foreign investments {162) {3,808
Total net [losses)/gains recognised for the year {4,079) 16,993
* 3
Movements in group shareholders’ funds
for the year ended 31st January 1999
i
£000 e )
Total net {losses)/gains recognised for the year {4,079) 16,993
Dividends paid and proposed {6,637 {3,627)
Distribution on demerger - (17,389)
Net decrease in shareholders’ funds {10,718) {4,023)
Opening shcreholders’ funds 226,324 230,347
Closing shareholders” funds 215,608 226,324
Group note of historical cost profits and losses
for the year ended 31st January 1999
L
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 6,261 35,003
Effect of impairment losses on revalued element of properties 854 -
Realised gains on revalued properties 1,692 6,905
Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 8,807 41,908
Historicai cost [loss)/prafit for the year retained after taxation, minority interests and dividends {8,008) 6,690
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Accounting policies

The financiol statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, modified to include the periodic revaluation of freehold and iong
leasehold land and buildings, and in accordance with applicable accounting siandards.

Group accounts
The group accounts comprise a consolidation of the accounts of the parent company and all of its subsidicries. The principal subsidiaries
are listed on page 43.

Basis of presentation of financial information

The group has adopted FRS?, 10, 11,12 and 14, during the yeor. FRS?, 11, 12 and 14 have no effect on the accounting policies.
Following the adoption of FRS10, the accounling policy for goodwill was changed as described on page 29. As more fully explained in
the Accounting policies note to the 1998 financial statements, the conditions for merger accounting set cut in aecounting stordards and the
Cempanies Act 1985, which were used as the basis for the presentation of the 1998 financial statements, were not all met for the group
reconstruction. However, the directors considered that if acquisifion accounting had been applied the financial sidtements would have failed
to give o true and fair view for the sharsholders, since they had a continving inferest in the business both before and after the demerger.
Accordingly merger accounting was opplied. As explained in that note, it was not practicable to quantify the effect of the departure.

Investments in subsidiary companies
Invesiments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost in the balance sheet of the parent company less provisions for any impairment in value.

Foreign currency ranslation

The assets, liabilities and trading resuits of overseas subsidiaries expressed in foreign currencies have been converted at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balence sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the reranslation of the opening net cssets of overseas
subsidiaries have been carried directly to reserves. All other exchange differences have been declt with through the profit and loss accouat,

Freehold and long leasehold land and buildings

Land and buildings are subject 1o periodic revaluation by qualified surveyors and valuers on an open markei, existing use basis and are
stated ot valuation, where appropriate, having regard to the value of each property to the business. Any impairmens in the value of such
preperfies has been charged 1o the profit and loss accouni. When properties have been identified for disposal they are stated ot the
anticipated realiscble value.

Depreciation

The majority of the freehold buildings and long leaseholds are not depreciated. It is the group’s practice to maintsin these assefs in a
continsous state of sound repair and to extend and make improvements thereto from time to fime. Accordingly the directors consider that the
lives of these assets are so long and residual values are so high that their depreciation s insignificant. Sheort leasehold property is amertised
by equal annual instalments over the lesser of 14 years or the life of each lease. Plant and equipment has been depreciated to write off
the original cost, less any residual value, evenly over its expected life: average uselut lives are: 8 years for plant, machinery and fixtures,

4 years for motor vehicles and 3 years for computer hardware.
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Capitalisation of software costs
Software costs are capitalised and amortised over three years. Where appropriale these costs include elements of fees paid to external
consultants.

No cosis associated with the conversion of systems to be year 2000 or EMU compliant have been capitalised.

leased assets

Fixed assets held under finance lkeases have been capitalised and depreciated over their expected vseful lives. The related lease cbligations
have been included in creditors. The finance charges hava been charged fo the profit and loss account over the primary period of the
lease. Operating lease rentals have been charged fo the profit and loss account as incurred.

Goodwill
In previous years, goodwill resulting from the cost of shares in subsidiory companies being in excess of the fair volue fo the business of the
assefs acquired was written off against reserves immediately on acquisition,

following the introduction of FRS10, goodwill arising on businesses acquired will now be capitelised. Goodwill previously written off to
reserves will not be reinstated.

Research and development
All expenditure on research and development has been written off in the year in which it is incurred.

Stock
Stock has been stated at the lower of cost and net reclisable value. The cast of manufactured stocks, including workin-progress, includes all
direct expenditure together with an appropriate proporfion of overheads.

Deferred taxation

Tox deferred or accelerated is accounted for in respect of all material fiming differences to the extent that it is probable that a liability o
asset is estimated to arise. Full provision has been made for deferred taxation on the cumulative difference between regular pension costs
and the amount credited in respect of the acuarial surplus. No provision has been made for the potential tax which might arise on revalued
land and buildings or on invesiments, including investments in subsidiary companies, if they were to be disposed of at the amounts included
in the balance sheet.

Pension costs
The cost of providing pension benefits has been charged to the profit and loss cccount over the working lives of employees.
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Notes to the accounts

In these notes to the cccounts, the headings “1999" refer to the year ended or the balance sheet as at 31st January 1999 and the
headings "1998" refer to the year ended or the balance sheet as ot 315t Janvary 1998.

1 Analysis of tumover, profit and copital employed
The turncver and profits of the group derive from its acliviies in the shoe frade. Discontinued activities relate to the disposal of the Australion
refail business and to the demerger of the group’s interests in the Factory Quilet Cenires on 26th June 1997. Prior year comparatives have
been restated to show the turnover and operating result from the Ausiralian retail business within discontinued activities.

a) Analysis of profit/{loss) by geographical area of origin

Profit/{loss) before Profit/{loss) before Profit/ {toss} Profit/{loss)

exceptional exceptional Exceptional Exceptional  before interest before interest
itemns flenms items items and faxation and 1oxation
1999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998
£000 £000 £000 2000 £000 £000

Continuing operations
UK 32,968 26,243 {20,880) (1,334) 12,088 24,909
North America 8,686 2,135 - - 8,686 G, 135
Australia (2,226) 771 {7,950) - (10,176} [771)
Rest of the world 3,472 3,200 - - 3,472 3,200

Discontinued operations

UK - 1,584 - - - 1,584
Australia (428} - (4,180) - {4,608) -
{428) 1,584 (4,180} - {4,608) 1,584

42,472 39,321 (33,010) {1,334} 9,462 38,057

. Turnolver by < | \ Ccpitbcl
uinaver Turnov ultimate api m
Tormover by geogrg‘;iick;yf ultier::abr: geogro;higgl employeg 'l; geg;gsgicc)i
geographical oreq of origin geographical morker geographical ocea of origin
area of origin {restated) market [restoted)  area of origin lrestoted)
1999 1998 199% 1998 1999 1998
£000 £C00 £000 £000 £000 EQOO
UK 515,840 494,234 471,810 450,256 176,176 177,212
North America 167,506 157,636 167,506 157,647 75,868 68,092
Australia 28,799 31,417 26,206 371,111 8,985 17,020
Rest of the world 74,135 53,067 120,758 G7,340 15,813 12,768
Total foctwear 786,280 736,354 786,280 736,354 276,842 275,092
Unallocated items - - - - {10,131) {17.050)
Discontinved activities 5,930 6,787 5,930 &, 787 (229) 3,082
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1 Andlysis of turnover, profit and capital employed continued
<) Reconciliation of capital employed and net assets:

1999 1698
£000 £000
Capital employed (see note 1b) 266,482 261,124
Net borrowings (see note 28) (52,518)  (34,960)
Deferred toxation (see note 18] 1,644 1,031
Minority interest - 871)
Net assets 215,608 226,324
2 Operating profit and costs
a) Costs less other income:
........................................................................................................................ L
exceptional Exceptional exceplional Exceptianal
items items Total items items Total
1999 1999 1999 1998 1998 1998
£000 £000 £000 £00C £000 £000
Turnover 792,210 - 792,210 743,141 - 743,141
Cost of sales (451,085) (25,225) (476,310} {425,066) - {425,066
Gross profit 341,125 (25,225} 315,900 318,075 - 318,075
Distribution cosis {184,131) (2,281) (186,412) (173,605) - {173,605)
Administrative expenses (114,479) [910) (115,389} (105,589) - {105,389
Share of {loss)/profit of associated undertakings (43} - (43) 510 - 510
Operating profit 42,472 {28,416) 14,056 39,321 - 39,391
................................................................................................................................................................................................ e
Before Before Before exceptionol ilems  exceptional items Before
phonal ilems ptional itemns P | tems Cantirving Ciscontinued  exceplional items
Continuing Discontinued Total [restated] {restated] Total
1999 1999 1999 1998 1698 1998
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Turnover 786,280 5,930 792,210 736,354 6,787 743,141
Cost of sales (447,919} {3,166) {451,085) [421,361) {3.705]) . |425,066)
Gross profit 338,361 2,764 341,125 314,993 3,082 318,075
Distribution costs (184,131) - {184,131) ({175,189 1,584 {173,605}
Administrafive expenses {111,287 (3,192) (114,479} (102,507} {3,082y {105,589
Share of {loss}/profit of asseciated undertakings (43) - (43} 510 - 310
Operating profit 42,900 (428) 42,472 37,807 1,584 39,391
Administrative expenses include the costs of long term incentive schemes:
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... e
£000 £000
Shadow Share Scheme {292) 136
MNorth American Shadow Share Scheme 575 1,825
Executive Directors’ Deferred Share Scheme 304 43%
Senior Managers' Scheme 500 -
1,087 2,400

These schemes cre defailed in the Remuneration Report on pages 18 ta 20.
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2 Operating profit and costs continved
b} Exceptional items charged in arriving ot operating profit are:

Cast of Distribution  Administralive Total
soles costs expenses 1999
£000 £000 £000 £000
Closure and restructuring of UK factories - 18,015 - 4463 18,478
Restructuring of Ravel - 678 146 824
Resfructuring of Bulimead warehouse - 1,308 9 1,317
Closure of Marleston plant, Australia 2,943 - - 2,943
Write down of Australian wholesale stock 2,868 - - 2,868
Other Australian restructuring costs 1,399 295 292 1,986
25,225 2,281 910 28,416
c} Other costs charged in arriving at operating profit include
e e
£000 £000
Depreciation of owned assefs 18,974 13,390
Depreciation of assels held under finance leases 579 651
Awditors’ remuneration
— Audit fees - 345 325
— Other fees, UK 252 208
Operaling lease renials
- land and buildings 59,683 56,058
- Plant and equipment 2,949 2,445
Operating lease rental income
- Lland and buildings 7476 7.576
Parent company audit fees were £nil in both years.
d) Average number of full and part-time employees
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... o
Mumber Number
Production 4,476 5,039
Sales and distribution 11,409 10,974
Adminisiration 541 &07

The average number of employees has been calculated on a monthly weighted average. Total number of employees at the year end was
16,543 (1998 - 16,560).

e} Employment costs in respect of the foregoing

1999 1998
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 147,358 148,082
Sociai security costs 13,783 14,067
Pensicn confributions (see note 23) {23) 564
long term incentive schemes 1,087 2,400
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2 Operating profit and costs continued
f) Aggregate emoluments of the directors

1999 1908

£000 £000

Non-executive directors’ fees and benefits 185 175
Executive directors’ services

- salaries and benefits 763 788

~ long term incentives 322 439

1,270 1,402

Pension contributions — FURBS 148 136

1,418 1,538

Mere detailed information concerning directors” shareholdings and emoluments (including the Shadow Share Scheme and other fong term
incentive schemes) is shown in the Remunerction Report on pages 18 to 20,

g} Executive directors share schemes
The C & Clark Executive Share Trust holds shares in the expectation of future grants being made to executives. These shares ore
included ot cost as fixed asset invesiments (see note 12), and the overdralt of the Trust is included within borrowings. Dividends have
not been waived on these shares and the income and financing expenses of the Trust have been included in the consolidated profit

and loss acgount.

At 31st January 1999 the Trust held 347,704 shares which were all under option to executives. More detailed information is shown in the
Remuneration Repart on pages 18 to 20. The latest published share price was £2.70 per share.

3 Costs of demerger
The cost of demerging the company’s interests in the Faclory Quitlet Centres ot Street, Kendal and Doncaster as shown in the comparatives,
was £2,163,000 being mainly legal and professional fees associated with the transaction.

4 ({Loss)/profit on disposal of fixed assets in continuing operations

1999 1998
£000 £000
Property disposals: surplus over net book valve 1,837 1,049
Impairments in the value of frechold and leasehold properties (2,251) {220)
{414) 829
5 Lloss on disposal of discontinued operations
Discontinved operations relate 1o the sale, to be comoleted on &th April 1999, of the Australian retail business.
Prior year comparatives for the turnover and operating result have been restated accordingly.
Analysis of the sale:
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. o
£006
Net assets disposed of
Stock 4,132
Crher net assets 4380
4,612
Loss on disposal (4,180)
Satisfied by cash 432
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Net interest payable

1999 1998
£000 £000
Interest payable in respect of;
Bank loans and overdrafts 3,040 2,910
Other loans 954 732
3,994 3,642
Interest receivabie {7923) (588)
3,201 3,054
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... e
£000 £000
UK Corporation Tax at 31% (1998 — 31%) on profits for the year 7,306 8,705
Dauble taxation relief {435) [868)
6,871 7.837
Overseas taxation 4,856 5,992
Deferred taxation {1,277) 54
Overprovision in previous year (622) {34)

1999 1998
£000 £000
Paid:
Interim Ordinary Share dividend of 3.9p (1998 — 0.0p) per share 3,010 -
3,010 -
Proposed:
Final Ordinary Share dividend of 4.7p (1998 — 4.7p) per share 3,627 3,627
6,637 3,027

Distribution on demerger
A demerger of the group's inferests in the Factory Outlet Centres at Street, Kendal and Doncaster was undertaken on 26ih June 1997,
The net assets leaving the group amounted to £17,389,000 which was the net bock value of those assets at the date of the demerger.

Earnings per Ordinary Share

Earnings per Ordinary Share have been ccleulated by dividing the loss after tax and minarity interests attributable to ordinary sharsholders
of £3,917,000 (1998 - profit £20,801,000] by 77,181,625 Ordinary Shares being the number in issue in both 1999 and 1998,
There is no difference between basic and diluted earnings per shore. No dilution of earnings will arise from the future exercise of entilements
under the Shodow Share Scheme.
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11 Fixed assets —~ tangible assets
a) Summary

land and tond and tand and

Buildings Buildings Buildings Plant and

Freehold  long leosehold  Short leasehald Equipmeni Tolaf

£0C0 £000 £000 £O00 £000
Cost or valuation
At 31st January 1998 37,930 2,197 4,19¢ 135,301 179,627
Exchange rate adjustments 71 - 5 620) [586)
Capital expenditure 51 - 794 30,395 31,700
Disposals and provisions (5,941) {255) (227) (9,234) (15,657)
At 31st January 1999 32,429 1,942 4,771 155,842 194,984
Depreciation
At 31st January 1998 462 - 3,850 77,819 82,131
Exchange rate adjusiments 25 - 2 {446) {419)
Charge for the year & - 260 19,287 19,553
Disposals - - (262) (7,373} (7.635)
At 31t January 1999 493 - 3,850 89,287 93,630
Net book value
At 313t joanuary 1999 31,936 1,942 21 66,555 101,354
Al 313t January 1998 37,468 2,167 349 57,482 Q7,496
Disposals and provisions siated above include the following
ameunts in respect of exceptional write-downs of assets 2,251 - - 3,973 6,224
b) Valuation of Land and Buildings
............................................................................................................................................................................................. thdmwmgl
Total
Land and Buiidings are siated at: i £000
Valuation 27,772 1,842 29,614
Cost less depreciation 4,164 100 4,264
31,936 1,942 33,878

At historical cost, the comparable amounts would be:
Cost 22,390 205 23,295
Cepreciation {493) - {493)
Net book value 21,897 905 22,802

Freshold and long leaseheld land and buildings are valued periodically on an open market, existing use basis. Where properties have been
identified for dispasal they are stated at anticipated reglisable value. The latest full valuation was undertaken on 3 1st January 1994,

¢} Leased assets
Plant and Equipment includes leased assets with a net book value of £1,142,000 (1998 - £1,357,000).
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12 Fixed assets — invesiments
a} Group

................................................................................................................................................................. R
held in Trust investments undertokings Total
£000 £000 £0C0 £0C0
Net book values at 31st January 1998 836 5 201 1,042
Purchased by Execulive Share Twst [note 2g) 56 - - 56
Additions/{decrease) in net assels - 4 {43) (39
Disposals (77) - (1C3) (180)
Net book volues at 31st January 1999 815 ¢ 55 879

The group holds 45,000 Ordinary Shares of £1 each in CSM3D International Limited, a company which specialises in CAD/CAM
design facilifies for the shoe trade, representing 50% of that company’s issued share capital having voting rights.

During the year Kingsfame limited, ¢ marketing company bosed in Hong Kong in which the group had a 25% equily stake, was liquidated.

b} Company
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................... G
subsidiary subsidiary
undertakings underickings
1999 1998
£000 £000
Net book volue at 31st January 1998 77,182 -
Additions ) - 77,182
MNet book value at 31st January 1999 77,182 77,182
13 Stock
L
£000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 9,996 10,929
Work in progress 4,538 5,472
Finished goods and goods for resale 173,457 172,09C
187,991 188,491
14 Debtors
........................................................................................................................................................................ Pt o
1999 1 1999 !
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade debtors 55,603 53,985 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 83,627 83,627
Other debiors 1,934 1,598 - -
Prepayments and acerved income 19,883 13,256 - -
77,420 62,539 83,627 83,627
Other debtors falling due after one year 371 371 - -
Prepaid pension costs {see note 23} 3,385 4610 - -
Deferred taxation (see note 18) 1,644 1,031 - -
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16

17

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
................................................................................................................................................................................................ e
Group lrestoted) Company Company
1999 1598 1999 1598
£000 £000 £000 £000
Debenture loans 565 1,126 - -
Bank loans and overdrafts 56,228 39,861 - -
Obligations under finance leases 681 564 - -
Trade creditors 39,820 44,475 - -
Current taxation 6,640 10,893 - -
Social security 2,213 2,697 - -
Cther creditors including Value Added Tax 12,471 7078 - -
Accruals and deferred income 16,872 19,662 - -
Dividends payable 3,627 3,627 3,627 3,627
139,117 129,983 3,627 3,627
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
........................................................................................................................................................................................................................ G
1 1958
£000 £0C0
long term locns 26,292 22,477
Obligations under finance leases 158 599
Crher creditors - 4
26,450 23,080
Amounts falling due between:
- one and two years 26,450 568
- two and five years - 22,512
26,450 23,080
Provisions for liabilities and charges
..................................................................................................................................... - SISIjonucry
1993 Exchonge rate Provided At 31st January
lresiated) odjustment in year Utilised 1999
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Shadow Share Scheme 1,261 - (292} {363] 606
North America Shadow Share Scheme 2,150 (50} 575 - 2,675
long service leave 863 (75} 164 {275) 677
Restruciuring 3,218 - 19,938 (4,227) 18,929
Other 497 (1} (27} 81) 388
7,980 {126) 20,358 (4,246) 23,275

In 1998, provisions for restructuring of £3,218,000 were included within accruals and deferred income. These have been reclassified this
year as provisions and comparative amounts have been restcted accordingly.
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18 Deferred taxation

Group
£000
Net deferred taxation asset:
At 31st Janvary 1998 1,031
Exchange refe odjustment {5)
Profit and loss account 1,884
Crther adjustments 11,266)
At 31st January 1999 1.644
Provision has been made for tax arising from:
Roll over relief {4,015)
Shortterm timing differences 5,659
1,644
No provision has been made for tax in respect of:
Capital Allowances in excess of depreciation 2,021
Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings 1,000
tiquidation of UFO inventory reserves in the USA 5,052
8,073

No provision has been made for any potential tax liability which would arise if the retained profits of overseas subsidiaries were distributed
as dividends.

19 Share capital

Issved and Issued and

Authorised fully paid Authorised fully paid

1999 199% 1908 1998

£000 £000 £000 2000

Ordinary Shares of £1 ecch 92,326 77,182 92,326 77182

20 Merger reserve
A merger reserve of £15,145,000 (1998 - £15,145,000) exists in the group and arises from the adoption of merger accounting in the
year ended 31st January 1998 relating fo the group reconstruction following the demerger of the Factory Outlet Centres.
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Profit and loss account

........................................................................................................................................................................................................................ %mpccmpmy
At 31st January 1998 133,997 80,000
Currency translation adjustments (162) -
Transfer o reserve 110,554) -
At 31st Jonuary 1992 123,281 80,000

The profit for the year, dealt with in the profit and loss account of the company, amounted to £nil (1998 — £80,000,00C). In accordance
with Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, a separate profit and loss account has not been published for the company.

The share of associated undertakings’ retained earnings and reserves of £9,000 (1998 — £82,000} is included in the total for the group.

The cumulative amount of goodwill written off since 1st February 1985 is £2,051,000 (1998 - £2,051,000). Information in respect of
amounts written off before that date is not available.

Financial commitments
Commitments by the group for capital expenditure not previded in the accounts were:
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... i
£000 £000
Contracted but not provided for 5,309 5,615
Annual commitments by the group in respect of noncancellable operating leases were:
.................................................................................................................................................................... e
Buildings Buildings Equipment Equipment
1999 1568 1999 1998
£000 £000 £000 £OCC
Expiring within one year 2,465 1,926 876 261
Expiring between second and fifth years 13,263 12,385 1,779 1,461
Expiring afier five years 43,285 38,950 59 3
59,013 53,261 2,714 1,725
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24

Pension commitments
The group operates ¢ number of pension schemes throughout the world. The major schemes are of the defined bensfit type with assets held

in separcte trustee administered funds.

Al &th April 1997 the main UK pension scheme was valued by indepandent qualified actuaries using the projecied unit credit method.
The scheme had a surplus of £11.8m with assets having an actuarial value of £368.4m, representing 103% of the actuaricl value of
the liabilities.

The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the veluation are those relating to investment returns and the rates of
increases in salaries and pensions.

The key funding assumptions used were:

Rare

per ennum
Long term rate of investment return 8.75%
Equity dividend growth 4.50%
General salary ard wage irflation rate 7.00%
Pension increase rate 4.50%

The schame was also valued under the Minimum Funding Requirement [MFR) regulations which were introduced in the Pensions Act 1995,
Under the bases prescribed by the Act the assets exceeded the liabilities by 34%.

For accounting purposes the assumption for the average rate of equity dividend growth was 5% per annum. The surplus is being recognised
using the straight ling method over the average remaining service life of employees, being 12 years.

The total pension costs of all group schemes net of experience surpluses charged/(credited) in the profit and loss account was:

1999 1908
£000 £000
Regular pension costs 6,530 7,000
Experience surplus, credited to the profit and loss account (6,553) {6,436
(23) 564

The cumulative difference between the regular pension costs and the amount credited in respect of the surplus amounis to £3,385,000
{1998 — £610,000) and is included in Debtors (see note 14,

Centingent liabilities

There were contingent liabilities in respect of:

........................................................................................................................................................................ P sy
1999 1593 1 1998
£000 £000 £000 £000

Guarantees of repayment of loans 139 153 - -

Other guarantees and indemnities 223 299 - -
362 452 - -

In the normal course of frede the group has assigned leases of properties no lenger required to third parties and therefore, refains contingent
lickilities should the evantual assignees default. Such confingent liabilities are unquantifiable. However losses to date have been immaterial.

The company has guaranteed subsidiary underakings’ bank bomowings of £7,270,000 (1998 - £4,826,000). In addition, the company
has cross guarantee arrangements with certain of its subsidiary underickings.
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25 Related parly transactions
Control
The group holding company is C & ] Clark Limited. As siated in the corporale governance stotement on pages 22 and 23, family
sharehoiders represent some 72% of the company’s Ordinary Shares.

Transactions with directors and officers

At 31t Jenuary 1999 there were loans of £149,000 (1998 — £163,000) made by the group to 12 senior employees, being amounis
advaneed in accordance with the terms of a share participation scheme which provides interest free loans to certain employees for the
purchase of the company’s shares. A loan 1o Peter Bolliger existed througheut the year and the amount of the fiability was £12,000
11998 — £15,000)] at the end of the financial year.

Transactions with subsidiaries and associates

Under certain conditions, Financial Reporting Standard No 8 gives exemptions from the disclosure of related party transactions for:
- Transaclions beiween group enlities that have been elimincted on consolidation

- Subsidiaries which are wholly owned or those where 90% of the voling rights are controlled within the group

— Franchisors, distributors or general agents with whem an entity transacts o significant volume of business.

The group has taken advantage of these exemptions where applicable. The directors therefore consider that there are no transactions with
subsidiaries or associates which require disclosure.

26 Reconciliation of operating profit items fo operating cash flows

Conlinying

Discontinued

Continying Discontinued Toal frestoted) lrestated} Toral
1999 1999 1999 1998 1998 1998
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Operating profit/{loss] before exceptional costs 42,900 {428) 42,472 37,807 1,584 39,391

Exceptional costs {28,416) - {28,416} ~ - -

14,484 {428) 14,056 37,807 1,584 39,391

Depreciation: charges 19,553 - 19,553 14,041 - 14,041

Share of losses/[profits) of associates 43 - 43 139 {205) {66}

{Increase]/decrease in stocks 492 (1,036) (544) 140,716} i4) {40,720

{Increase) /decrease in debtors (10,723) 50 (10,673) (12,733} 536 {12,197

Increcse/|decrease) in creditors [3,103) 262 {2,841) 4,977 {426) 4551

Increase/(decrease) in other provisions 15,412 - 15,412 4,934 - 4,034

[Loss)/profit on sale of tangible fixed assets {1,059} - {1,059} 1,315 - 1,315

35,099 (1,152) 33,947 G,764 1,485 11,249

{Loss)/ profit on disposcl of land and buildings (414) 82¢

loss on disposal of discontinued operation {4,180) -

Costs of demerger - (2,163

Net cash inflow from operating activities 29,353 2,15

During the year the cash flow relating to exceptional items was an ouflow of £4,227,000. This amount was spent against exceptional
provisions of £3,218,000 existing at 31st January 1998, as weli as being part of the resiuciuring costs in note 2o,
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27 Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in the cash flow statement

a) Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
Interest paid, including finance lease charges
Dividend paid to minorily inferests

793

{77

b) Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tengible fixed assets
Scle of tangible fixed assets
Shares acquired by Execuiive Share Trust
Investment disposed of by Executive Share Trust
Additions to investments

{30,982}
9,396
{56}

(21,166)
7.946
(319)

¢} Acquisitions and disposals
Investment in Clarks Japan Company Limited
Liquidation of Kingsfame Limited
Sale of Rohan Designs ple
Sale of loan notes issued by RAM Euro-Centras {Doncaster) Limited

d} Financing
Capital element of finance lease rental payments
Repayment of debeniure loans
Increase in long term bank loans
Extensicn of facility loan
Redempfion of Preference Shares

28

Translotion
differences
£000

MNew finance
leases
£000

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdrafis

28,712

(31,406)
36,875

Debenture loans

Bank loans

Obligations under finance leases
long term loans

[955)
1,126
11,149
1,163
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C & J Clark Limited and subsidiaries

The following principai subsidiaries are those contributing to the profits and the assets of the group. All are wholly owned and unless

otherwise stated all are engaged in the shoe trade.

Country of
Incorparation

Owned via subsidiary undertakings

C & ] Clark International Limited
Trading as: Clarks International {Clarks, K Shoes and Ravel)

C & Clork Properties Limited

C & ] Clark America, Inc.

C & ] Clark - Fabrica de Calcado LDA

Clarks of England, Inc.

Clorks Shoes Limited

Claravon limited

Clarks Shoes Vertriebs GmbH

Clarks Shoes Benelux BY

Clarks Japan Company Limited

England

Englond
USA
Portugal
USA
Aystralic
Australic
Germany
Holland

£1
us$i
ESCI
Us$i
AS1
A1
DM
NLGT

each
each
each
each
each
each
each
each

Japan ¥50,000 ecch




Group financial record

1999 1958 1997 1996 1995

Motes £000 £000 £000 €000 £000
Group trading results for the years ended 31st January
Turnover ' 792,210 7431410 727,345 721,630 684,318
Profit before interest and excepfional items 42,472 39,391 33,569 35,758 31,604
Exceptional ilems (33,010) (1,334) [30,447) 15,681) 8,122
Profit before interesi and after exceplional fems 9,462 38,057 3,122 30,077 23,482
Net interest (3,201) (3,054) {3,531} 5,271 [3.859)
Profit /{loss) before tax and afier exceptional items 6,261 35,003 (40%) 24,806 19,623
{Loss)/profit after tax and minarity interest (3,917) 20,801 {3,167) 16,817 14,770
Group financial position at 31st January
Capital employed 266,482 261,124 252,931 209,709 281,449
Net borowings 52,518 34,960 23,158 58,604 57,364
Ordinary shareholders' funds 215,608 226,324 230,347 241,222 227,100
Ratios )
Return on sales 1 5.4% 5.3% 4.6% 5.0% 4.6%
Return on capital employed 2 15.9% 15.1% 13.3% 11.9% 11.2%
Net assets per Ordinary Share 3 £2.79 £2.93 £2.98 £3.13 £2.94
Net borrowings,/equity 24.4% 15.4% 10.1% 24.3% 25.3%
Earnings per Ordinary Share ‘ 4 {5.1p) 27.0p (4.1p} 21.8p 19.1p
Earnings per Ordinary Share before exceplional items 31.4p 28.3p 23.7p 26.9p 24.9p
Dividends per Ordinary Share 8.6p 4.7p 7.0p 7.Cp &6.5p
Dividend cover - 57 - 3.1 2.9
Interest cover 5 3.0 12.5 0.9 57 &1

1 Return on sales is the profit before interest and exceptional items expressed os a percentage of umover.

2 Retumn on capilal employed is the profit before interest and exceplional ilems expressed as a perceniage of copital employed at the yeor end.
3 Nt assets per Ordinary Share is the amount of the erdinary shareholders’ funds divided by the number of Crdinary Shores in issue.

4 Eamings per Ordinary Share hove been calculated as per note 10 in the noles to the financial statements.

5 Interest cover is the profit before interest divided by net interest.

& Prior year comparatives have been restaled where appropriate.




Facts at your fingertips

1999
UK, Eurcpe
and rest 1999 1999 1999
of the world America Australia Group
Turnover {Emillions) 589 168 35 792
Employees (number* af year end) 14,389 1,591 563 16,543
Factories [number at year end) 10 1 4 15
Pairs manufaciured (millions) 1.7 0.8 1.1 13.6
Pairs resourced [millions) 17.0 5.3 0.7 23.0
Pairs sold {millions} 29.5 6.1 1.9 37.5
Shops
Clarks /K Shoes 448 - - 468
Concessions 74 - - 74
Clearance outlets 26 21 5 52
Ravel 62 - - 62
Bostonian /Hanover - 155 - 155
Clarks of Englond/Back Bay - 15 - 15
Total shops 4630 191 5 826
......................................................................................................................................................................... i
UK, Europe
and rest 1998 1998 1998
of the world America Australio Group
Turnover [Emillions) 547 158 38 743
Employees (number* at year end) 14,290 1,619 &51 16,560
Factories [number at year end} 10 1 4 15
Pairs manufactured (millions) 11.9 c.7 0.9 13.5
Pairs resourced {millions) 14.8 2.6 1.0 18.4
Pairs sold (millions) 26.7 5.5 1.¢ 341
Shops
Clarks/K Shoes 504 - - 504
Concessions 75 - - 75
Clearance outlets _ 26 28 7 61
Ravel &0 - - &0
Bostonian /Hanover - 166 - 166
Clarks of England/Back Bay - 12 - 12
Footrest - - 1¢ 19
Total shops 665 206 26 867

* Including part lime employees
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